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Brenda Lee Estes appeals her conviction, following a jury
trial, of aiding and abetting the possession of pseudoephedrine
wth intent to manufacture nethanphetamne, a violation of
21 U.S.C. § 843(a)(6). She does not challenge her conviction
of another count charging her wth conspiracy to manufacture
met hanphet am ne. The district court sentenced Estes to concurrent
87-nmonth prison terns and three-year supervised-rel ease terns.

On July 25, 2002, investigators found 312 pseudoephedrine

pill's under the passenger seat of an |suzu pickup truck that Estes

Pursuant to 5THCQR R 47.5, the court has determ ned that
this opinion should not be published and is not precedent except
under the limted circunstances set forth in 5THCQR R 47.5. 4.



was driving. Codefendant Randy Hunter, with whom Estes |ived and
who was her fornmer husband, was in the passenger seat. Estes does
not dispute that Hunter was a nethanphetam ne cook and that the
pills were to be used as an ingredient in a “cook.” Est es,
however, chall enges the sufficiency of the trial evidence to prove
that she knew that the pills were in the truck

The evi dence was not insufficient to support an inference that
Estes knew that the pseudoephedrine pills were hidden under the

passenger seat. See United States v. Villarreal, 324 F. 3d 319, 322

(5th Gr. 2000); United States v. Jones, 185 F.3d 459, 464 (5th

Cr. 1999). Al t hough Estes’s control of the truck was not
sufficient by itself to establish that she know ngly possessed the

pills, see United States v. Crain, 33 F.3d 480, 486 (5th Cr.

1994), other evidence established her know edge. Wt nesses
testified that they had bought nethanphetam ne from Estes and
Hunter at their hone, that Estes had used nethanphetam ne by
injecting it, that Estes appeared to be well aware of Hunter’'s role
as a net hanphet am ne cook, and that Estes had served as a | ookout
during Hunter’s cooks. On one prior occasion, Estes had
acconpanied others to steal anhydrous ammobnia, a necessary
ingredient in the manufacture of nethanphetam ne. Approximately
one week prior to July 25, 2002, Estes and Hunter had net Dulcie
and Whodrow Schul er and had arranged to assenble the ingredients
for a nethanphetam ne cook. The Schulers were to steal or
ot herwi se obtain anhydrous ammonia and Estes and Hunter would

supply other ingredients. The couples net again on the night of



July 25, 2002, but the plan fell through when the Schulers were
stopped wth stolen anhydrous amoni a and when Dulcie identified
the Isuzu pickup as belonging to the people to whomthey were to
supply the chemcal. Collectively, this evidence was sufficient to
prove Estes’ s know edge that the pseudoephedrine pills were in the
t ruck.

Estes’s convictions are AFFI RVED
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